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RMC and the City's wastewater is treated. Emergency and Fire services are provided by the County
through an interlocal agreement between Union County and City of Lake Butler. The City pays
$50,000 for police protection and contributes $25,000 for fire and emergency medical services.
The City provides recreation to its citizens with three parks and a splash park. Each park provides
amenities unique to the neighborhood it is located. For example, Westside Park desired a full-sized
basketball court while another park wanted a half-court and more playground equipment. Lakeside
Park offers a sandy beach on the water with handicap accessible playground equipment. Lakeside
Park is also the home of a splash park that attracts visitors from nearby communities.

Financial Position

Lake Butler has managed to operate within the budget while building adequate reserves for
operating emergencies but has not planned for infrastructure replacement. This is a critical missing
element since its facilities are or nearly fully depreciated. The City has two long-term debt
obligations for wastewater, 1980 bonds and 1996 bonds. The 1980 bonds will be paid in full
before September 30, 2019. The 1996 bond will be paid off in 2037. The City’s water and
wastewater rates have been artificially low, not allowing the City to adequately plan for
infrastructure replacement. In 2018 a small! rate increase was approved for water and wastewater
services, the first in 11 years. In addition to the increase a tiered rate structure was put into place
to encourage water conservation among the residents. in February 2018 Financial Policies were
put in place regarding Debt Management, Investment, Fund Balance, Grants and Revenue Control
and Management. These policies were not in existence prior years but will be needed going forward
since infrastructure replacement will be mandatory in upcoming years.

Economics

Lake Butler has an unemployment rate of 3.7% and a poverty rate of 24.7%. The area is
designated by the Governor as a Rural Area of Economic Opportunity. This designation creates
opportunities for additional funding that are not awarded City’s with a more substantial tax base.
The City’s millage rate for 2018 was 2.7500 miills. This generated ad valorem tax revenue in the
amount of $77,568, approximately 9% of the City’s budget income for the General Fund. The
median household property value is $79,000 with 16.2% of the City's land mass being exempt
from ad valorem taxes. While 84% of the City's land mass is taxable only 1/3 of private property
owners pay taxes. This is mostly due to low property values that fall below the homestead
exemption allowance. The City is seeing some growth. In the 2017-2018 fiscal year 3 applications
for new home construction were issued, 1 mobile home placement, and 1 site plan for a
commercial establishment was approved. In addition to new construction 2 buildings became
occupied by food service establishments, bringing some much-needed growth and stimulation to
the local economy. Most of the City's General Fund revenue is made up of sales and service taxes.
This includes a discretionary sales tax of 1%, franchise fees for electrical services provided by
Florida, Power & Light, and utility service taxes on electric, gas and communications.

Major Initiatives

Projects that are underway for infrastructure replacement include addressing the wastewater
collection system that experiences intake and infiltration (1&l), installing Advanced Metering
Infrastructure (AMI), and designing a new Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF). Funding is being
sought through the Florida Department of Environmental Protection’s State Revolving Fund (SRF)
for the wastewater collection system and AMI. The collection system will undergo a complete
analysis to address precise locations of mandatory line replacement or repairs. After determining
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" INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the City Commission
City of Lake Butler
Lake Butler, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govermmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information.of City of
Lake Butler (the City), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2018, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents.

Management'’s Responsibliity for the Financlal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibliity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control refevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s intemal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants ° American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinlons.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lake Butler, as of September 30,
2018, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and- analysis and budgetary comparison information and pension
schedules as listed in the Table of Contents be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February
11, 2019, on our consideration of the City of Lake Butler’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering City of Lake Butler's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

st S

POWELL & JONES
Certified Public Accountants
February 11, 2019
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CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA
Management’s Discussion and Analysls

This discussion and analysis is intended to be an easily readable analysis of the City of Lake Butler
(City) financial activities based on currently known facts, decisions or conditions. This analysis
focuses on current year activities and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements
that follow.

Report Layout

The City has implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34, Basic
Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Governments. This statement requires governmental entities to report finances in accordance with
specific guidelines. Among those guidelines are the components of this section dealing with
management’s discussion and analysis. Besides this Management's Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A), the report consists of government-wide statements, fund financial statements, notes to
the financial statements, and supplementary information. The first two statements are condensed
and present a government-wide view of the City’s finances. Within this view, all City operations are
categorized and reported as either governmental or business-type activities. Governmental
activities include basic services such as law enforcement and fire control, public works, parks and
recreation, library, community development and general governmental administration. The City's
water, sewer, and solid waste management services are reported as business-type activities. These
government-wide statements are designed to be more corporate-like in that all activities are
consolidated into a total for the City.

Baslic Financlal Statements

¢ The Statement of Net Position focuses on resources available for future operations.
In simple terms, this statement presents a snap-shot view of the assets the City
owns, the liabilities it owes and the net difference. The net difference is further
separated into amounts restricted for specific purposes and unrestricted amounts.
For the first time, governmental activities reflect capital assets including
infrastructure and long-term liabilities. Business-type activities have long been
reported capital assets and long-term liabilities. Also, governmental activities are
reported on the accrual basis of accounting.

e The Statement of Activities focuses on gross and net costs of the City’s programs
and the extent to which such programs rely upon general tax and other revenues.
This statement summarizes and simplifies the user’s analysis to determine the
extent to which programs are self-supporting and/or subsidized by general
revenues.

¢ Fund financial statements focus separately on governmental and proprietary funds.
Governmental fund statements follow the more traditional presentation of financial
statements. The City has five major governmental funds which are presented in
separate columns. A budgetary comparison is presented for each of the
governmental funds. Statements for the City's proprietary fund follow the
governmental funds and include net position, revenue, expenses and changes in net
position, and a statement of cash flows.
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e The notes to the financial statements provide additional disclosures required by
governmental accounting standards and provide information to assist the reader in

understanding the City’s financial condition.

e The MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial
statements and to explain the significant changes in financial position and

differences in operations between the current and prior years.

City as a Whole

Government-wide Flnanclal Statements

Net Positlon at September 30, 2018 and 2017

Governmental  Business-type Total Government
Activitles Activities 2018 2017

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,045,203 $ 814495 $ 1,859,698 $ 1,809,979
Other assets 90,510 150,861 241,371 266,814
Capital assets 1,781,891 1,074,891 2,856,782 2,959,508
Total assets 2,917,604 2,040,247 4,957,851 5,036,301
Deferred outflows 114,314 124,652 238,366 255,038
Llabllitles
Current liabilities 55,671 201,815 257,486 245,312
Long term liabllities 288,885 1,113,354 1,402,239 1,477,206
Total liabilities 344,556 1,315,169 1,659,725 1,722,518
Deferred Inflows 36,749 40,417 77,166 61,332
Net position
Invested in capital assets, net 1,781,891 203,891 1,985,782 2,026,508

of related debt
Restricted for

Road projects 317,743 - 317,743 332,325

Other purposes 79,533 245,412 324,945 281,697
Unrestricted 471,476 360,010 831,486 866,959
Total net position $ 2,650,613 $ 809,313 $ 3,459,926 $ 3,507,489

The majority all of the City’s net position reflect its investment in capital assets (land, buildings,
infrastructure, and equipment), less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets.
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from

other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabifities.
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Restricted assets consist of earmarked funds of $79,533 in the community redevelopment
program, $317,713 for street improvements, and $245,412 In the City’s Proprietary Fund.

The City’s net position decreased $47,563 over the year. The decrease is primarily due to a
decrease in grant receipts from prior years.

The following schedule provides a summary of the changes in net position.
A condensed version of the Statement of Activities follows:

Change [n Net Position
For the Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 2018 and 2017

Governmental Business-type Total Government
Activities Activities 2018 2017
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 105,561 $ 1,203,506 $ 1,309,067 $ 1,305,435
Grants and contributions 13,317 - 13,317 345,487
General revenues
Taxes 386,667 - 386,667 355,608
Franchise fees 130,726 - 130,726 132,953
State shared revenues 141,680 - 141,680 147,618
Interest 687 610 1,297 1,232
Rents, royalties and other 54,601 6,317 60,918 59,222
Total revenues 833,239 1,210,433 2,043,672 2,347,555
Expenses
General government 384,883 - 384,883 349,251
Public safety 150,770 - 150,770 152,076
Transportation 264,549 - 264,549 209,938
Economic environment 764 - 764 22,527
Human services 8,685 - 8,685 10,843
Culture/recreation 210,368 - 210,368 162,463
Interest on long-term debt - 42,153 42,153 44,756
Water - 338,928 338,928 355,947
Garbage services - 148,075 148,075 130,312
Sewer - 542,060 542,060 520,448
Total expenses 1,020,019 1,071,216 2,091,235 1,958,561
Transfers in (out) 70,734 (70,734) - -
Change in net position (116,046) 68,483 (47,563) 388,994
Beginning net position 2,766,659 740,830 3,507,489 3,118,495
Ending net position $ 2,650,613 $ 809,313 $ 3,459,926 $ 3,607,489

Governmental activities:

Taxes provide 46.4% of the revenues for Governmental Activities, while franchise fees provide
15.7% and grants provided 1.6%. Most of the Governmental Activities resources are spent for
General Government 37.7%, Transportation 25.9% and Culture/recreation 20.6%.



Business-type activities:

Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $68,483.

Budgetary Highlights

The City operated substantially within its budgetary appropriations during the current year.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

At September 30, 2018, the City had $2.86 million invested in capital assets, Including fire
equipment, park and recreation facilities, buildings, roads, bridges and water and sewer facilities.
This amount represents a net decrease (additions, deductions, and depreciation) of $102,727 or

3.47% less than last year. This decrease was primarily due to the assets’ loss of value from
depreciation.

Capital Assets at September 30, 2018 and 2017

Governmental Buslness-type
Activitles Actlvities Totals
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Land $ 84,551 $ 84551 $ 541813 $ 541813 $ 626364 $ 626,364
cip - 40,337 175,190 169,924 175,190 210,261
Bulldings 2,962,761 2,962,761 153,795 153,795 3,116,556 3,116,556
Improvements 15,549,190 15,490,607 5,549,717 5,506,822 21,098,907 20,997,429
Equlpment 615,465 600,353 243,800 243,800 859,265 844,153
Subtotal 19,211,967 19,178,609 6,664,315 6,616,154 25,876,282 25,794,763
Accumulated depreclation (17,430,076) (17,317,101) (5,589,424) (5,5618,154) (23,019,500) (22,835,255)
Capital assets, net $ 1,781,891 $ 1861508 $ 1074891 $ 1098000 $ 2,856,782 $ 2,959,508

Debt Outstanding

At year-end, the City had $871,000 in debt outstanding versus $933,000 last year, a decrease of
$62,000.
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Debt Outstanding at September 30, 2018 and 2017

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Revenue bonds $ - $ - $ 871000 $ 933000 $ 871000 $ 933,000
Compensated absences 14,173 22,850 5,188 8,991 19,361 31,841
Net Pension [iability 276,838 276,738 302,515 283,780 579,353 560,518
Total $ 291011 $ 299588 _$ 1178703 _$ 1225771 _$ 1469714 _$ 1525359

More detailed information on the City long-term liabilities is presented in the notes to the financial
statements.
OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Economic Factors and Rates

e The current unemployment rate for Union County was 4.4%. This rate represents an
increase from the prior year rate of 3.2%.

* The official population for the City in 2018 was 1,813 and is estimated to be approximately
the same in 2019.

¢ The ad valorem tax rate for the City was 2.7500 mills in 2018.
Financlal Contact

The City's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers,
investors, and creditors) with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the
City’s accountability. If you have questions about the report or need additional financial
information, please contact the City Manager at 200 SW First Street, Lake Butler, Florida 32054.

21



CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2018
Governmental Business-type
Actlvities Actlvities Total
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,045,203 $ 569,083 1,614,286
Accounts receivable - net 26,628 60,628 87,256
Due from other governmental units 12,255 84,821 97,076
Prepald expenses 8,970 12,063 21,023
Internal balances 6,641 (6,641) -
Total current assets 1,099,697 719,944 1,819,641
Noncurrent assets
Restricted assets
Cash - 106,791 106,791
Cash customer deposits - 138,621 138,621
Total restricted assets - 245,412 245,412
Capital assets - net 1,781,891 1,074,891 2,856,782
Total assets 2,881,588 2,040,247 4,921,835
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 114,314 124,652 238,366
LIABILITIES
Current liabltities payable from current assets
Accounts payable 7,439 7,563 15,002
Accrued liabllitles 10,090 6,425 16,515
Accrued compensated absences 2,126 1,349 3,475
Total current llabilities payable from current assets 19,655 15,337 34,992
Current liabilities payabte from restricted assets
Accrued interest payable - 3,276 3,276
Deposits - 119,202 119,202
Current portion serial bonds - 64,00& 64,000
Total current llabllities payable from restricted assets - 186,478 186,478
Noncurrent llabilities
Serlal bonds payable - 807,000 807,000
Accrued compensated absences 12,047 3,839 15,886
Net penslon llability 276,838 302,515 579,353
Total noncurrent liablilities 288,885 1,113,354 1,402,239
Total liabilitles 308,540 1,315,169 1,623,709
DEFERRED INFLOWS 36,749 40,417 77,166
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets net of related debt 1,781,891 203,891 1,985,782
Restricted for:
Road projects 317,713 - 317,713
Other purposes 79,633 245,412 324,945
Unrestricted 471,476 360,010 831,486
Total net position $ 2,650,613 $ 809,313 3,459,926
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CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2018

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenues and
Changes In Net Poslition

Operating Capital
Charges Grants and Grants and Governmental Busliness - type
Functions/Programs Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions Activitles Actlvities Total
“Governmental Activities
General government 384,883 $ 15126 $ - $ - $ (369,757) $ - $ (369,757)
Public safety 150,770 10,999 - - (139,771) - (139,771)
Physical environment - 1,300 - - 1,300 - 1,300
Transportation 264,549 78,136 - - (186,413) - (186,413)
Economic environment 764 - - - (764) - (764)
Human services 8,685 - - - (8,685) - (8,685)
Culture/recreation 210,368 - 13,317 - (197,051) - (197,051)
Total governmenta! activities X 105,561 13,317 - (901,141) - (901,147)
Business-type activitles
Water services 338,928 295,357 - - - (43,571) (43,571)
Garbage and solid waste services 148,075 183,212 - - - 35,137 35,137
Sewer services 642,060 724,937 - - - 182,877 182,877
Interest on long-term debt 42,153 - - - - (42,153) (42,153)
Total business-type activities 1,071,216 1,203,506 - - - X 2
Total government F 2055736 ) F 53T % - (S0L1ATy 132,250~ (768,851)
General revenues
Ad valorem taxes 129,050 - 129,050
Franchise fees 130,726 - 130,726
Utllity taxes 98,875 - 98,875
Sales and use taxes 158,742 - 158,742
Federal and state shared revenue 141,680 - 141,680
Interest 687 610 1,297
Miscellaneous 54,601 6,317 60,918
Transfers in (out) 70,734 (70,734) -
Total general revenues 785,095 (63,807) 721,288
Change in net position (116,646) s »
Net assets beginning 2,766,669 740,830 3,507,489
Net position, ending $ 2,650,613 $ 809,313 $ 3,459,926
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ASSETS
Cash

Accounts receivable
Due from State

Due from other funds
Prepald expenses

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued liabllities
Due to other funds

Total liabliitles

FUND BALANCES

Restricted
Unassigned

Total fund balances

CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2018

Capital Project

Net position of governmental activities

Speclal Revenue Funds Fund
Community Total
General Downtown Street Development Governmental
Fund Redevelopment Improvement Block Grant Funds
$ 625,016 $ 78,599 $ 341,311 277 $ 1,045,203
26,628 - - - 26,628
12,255 - - - 12,255
42,000 657 - - 42,657
8,970 - - - 8,970
$ 714,869 $ 79,256 $ 341,311 277 $ 1,135,713
$ 7,439 $ - $ - $ 7,439
10,090 - - 10,090
36,016 - - 36,016
53,545 - - - 53,545
- 79,256 317,713 277 397,246
661,324 - 23,598 - 684,922
661,324 79,256 341,311 277 1,082,168
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because: i
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported In the funds 1,781,891
Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption
of fund equity that will be reported as an outflow of resources in a
future period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds 114,314
Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition
of fund equity that wiil be recognized as an Inflow of resources in a
future period and therefore are not reported In the governmental funds {36,749)
Long-term llabllities are not due In the current period and, therefore, are
are not reported in the funds :
FRS Pensilon Liability (276,838)
Accrued compensated absences (14,173)

$ 2,650,613
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REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines
Intergovernmentat
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current expenditures
General government
Public safety
Transportation
Economic environment
Human services
Culture/recreation
Capital outlay
General government
Culture/recreation
Transportation
Public safety
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Interfund transfers in
Interfund transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances at beginning of year
Fund balances at end of year

CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2018

Capital Project
Special Revenue Funds Fund
Community Total
General Downtown Development Governmental
Fund Redevelopment Improvement Block Grant Funds
465,911 51,482 - 517,393
15,126 - - 15,126
10,999 - - 10,999
149,554 - 5,443 154,997
79,436 - - 79,436
54,285 658 - 55,288
775,311 52,140 5,443 833,239
367,912 - - 367,912
118,822 - - 118,822
224,654 - - 239,611
8,502 - - 8,502
146,813 13,270 - 160,083
1,160 - - 1,160
16,156 5,090 - 21,246
16,647 - - 16,647
900,666 18,360 - 933,983
(125,355) 33,780 5,443 (100,744)
78,107 852 - 78,959
- (2,764) (5,461) (8,225)
78,107 (1,912) (5,461) 70,734
(47,248) 31,868 (18) (30,010)
708,572 47,388 295 1,112,178
661,324 79,256 277 1,082,168




CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2018

Net change In fund balances - total government funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
of activities are different because:

Government funds report capital outlay as expenditures.
However, In the statement of activities, the cost of those
assets Is ailocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense.

Expenditures for capital assets
Less current year depreciation

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do
not require the use of current financial resources, therefore,
are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Net decrease in compensated absences
Net increase in pension liability
Net change In pension deferred outflows and Inflows
Change in net position of governmental activities

39,053

(118,670)

$

$

(30,010)

(79,617)

8,677
(100)
(14,996)

(116,046)
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CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA

PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2018
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash
Accounts receivable

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Due from other governmental units
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Restricted assets

Cash

Cash customer deposits
Total restricted assets

Noncurrent assets
Fixed assets
Land
Improvements other than buiidings
Construction In progress
Equipment
Aliowance for depreciation
Total fixed assets
Total assets
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS
LIABILITIES
Current liabllities payable from current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabllities
Due from other funds
Total current liabilities payable from current assets

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets
Accrued Interest payable
Deposits
Current portion serial bonds
Total current liabilities payable from restricted assets
Other liablilties
Accrued leave payabie
Noncurrent llabllities
Long-term liabilities
Serlal bonds payable
Net pension liability
Total long-term liabllities
Total llabilitles
DEFERRED INFLOWS

NET POSITION

Invested In capital assets net of related debt
Restricted - debt service

Restricted - other purposes

Unrestricted

Total net position

Enterprise Fund

$

569,083

124,276

(63,648)
84,821
35,359
12,053

761,944

106,791
138,621

245,412

541,813
5,703,512

175,190

243,800
(5,589,424)

1,074,891

2,082,247

124,652

7,563
6,425
42,000

55,988

3,276
119,202
64,000

186,478

5,188

807,000
302,515

1,109,515

1,357,169

40,417

203,891
106,791
138,621
360,010

809,313
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CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA

PROPRIETARY FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2018

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

Water utllity services
Sewer utility services
Garbage solid waste services
Water tap in and connection
Sewer tap in and connection
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Water services
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total water services

Sewer services
Personnel services
Operating expenses

Total sewer services

Garbage and solld waste services
Operating expenses
Total operating expenses

Operating income

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest revenue
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Net income before operating transfers

OPERATING TRANSFERS
interfund transfer in from CDBG
interfund transfers out
Water
Sewer

Net income
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

Enterprise Fund

282,970
714,564
183,212
12,387
10,373
6,317

1,209,823

163,975
174,953

338,928

189,865
352,195

542,060

148,075

1,029,063

180,760

610
(42,153)

(41,543)

139,217

5,266

(16,000)
(60,000)

(70,734)

68,483
740,830

809,313
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CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA

PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2018

Enterprise Fund
Cash flows from operating actlvities:
Cash recelved from customers, Including cash deposits $ 1,192,132
Cash pald to suppllers (643,695)
Cash pald for employees and benefits (342,087)
Net cash provided by operating actlivitles 206,350
Cash flows from non-capital related financing activtles:

Interfund transfers (28,734)
Net cash used In non-capltal related financing activities . (28,734)
Cash flows from capltal and related financing actlvities:

Acqulsition of fixed assets (48,161)

Principal payments (62,000)

Interest payments (42,153)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (152,314)
Cash flows from Investing activities:

Investment income 610
Net Increase In cash 25,912
Cash, at beginning of year 788,583
Cash, at end of year $ 814,495
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided

by operating actlvities

Operating income $ 180,760
Adjustments to reconcile operating Income to net cash
provided by operating actlivities:
Depreciation 74,270
Deferred Inflows 8,392
Deferred outflows 8,518
Net Penslon liabllity 112
Changes In assets decrease (Increase) and
liabilities (decrease) increase:
Accounts receivable 13,049
Due from other governments (42,076)
Accounts payable (27,689)
Accrued llabllitles (1,466)
Customer deposits 11,336
Compensated absences (3,803)
Prepald expenses (12,053)
Total adjustments 25,580
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 206,350

29



CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2018
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of Lake Butler (the City) have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles. Pronouncements of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) issued after November 30, 1989, are not applied in the preparation of the
financial statements of the proprietary fund type in accordance with GASB Statement 20. The
GASB periodically updates its codification of the existing Governmental Accounting and Financial
Reporting Standards which, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and
Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units.

In June, 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) unanimously approved
Statement 34-Basic Financial Statement and Management'’s Discussion and Analysis - for State
and Local Governments. As provided by GASB 34, the City has elected not to report retroactive
infrastructure improvements in its financial statements due to the fact that its annual revenues are
less than ten million. The City has implemented all other applicable provisions of this Statement.

A. Reporting Entity - The City of Lake Butler, Florida is a municipality created under Chapter 5507,
Laws of Florida, 1905, and is governed by a five member City Commission, all of whom are
individually elected, who select from among themselves one member to serve as Mayor.

In evaluating how to define the City, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered
all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting
entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GAAP. The basic, but not the only, criterion for
including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the governing body's ability to
exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant. manifestation of this ability is financial
interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include,
but are not limited to, the selection of governing authority, the designation of management, the
ability to significantly influence operations, and accountability for fiscal matters. A second criterion
used in evaluating potential component units is the scope of public service. Application of this
criterion involves considering whether the activity benefits the government and/or its citizens, or
whether the activity is conducted within the geographic boundaries of the government and is
generally available to its citizens. A third criterion used to evaluate potential component units for
inclusion or exclusion from the reporting entity is the existence of special financing relationships,
regardless of whether the government is able to exercise oversight responsibilities. Based upon the
application of these criteria, management determined that the following component unit existed
which should be included within the reporting entity on a blended basis.

City of Lake Butler Community Redevelopment Agency - This dependent special district was
established for the fostering of economic development within the downtown district under
Ordinance #96-05. The governing board is the City Commission which also establishes the
agency's annual budget. Because this component unit is in substance part of the City’s operations,
it has been reported on a blended basis in the City's financial statements as a separate special
revenue fund.
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B. Measurement Focus and Basls of Accounting - The basic financial statements of the City are
comprised of the following:

e Government-wide financial statements
e Fund financial statements
* Notes to the financial statements

i Government-wide Financlal Statements

Government-wide financial statements display information about the reporting government as a
whole, except for its fiduciary activities. These statements include separate columns for the
governmental and business-type activities of the City. For the most part, the effect of interfund
activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely, to a significant extent, on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary
government is reported separately from any legally separate component unit for which the primary
government is financially accountable.

Government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and agency fund financial
statements. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and
liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the
exchange takes place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from
nonexchange transactions are recognized in accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement
33 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions.

Program revenues include charges for services, special assessments, and payments made by
parties outside of the reporting government’s citizenry if that money s restricted to a particular
program. Program revenues are netted with program expenses in the statement of activities to
present the net cost of each program.

Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the government-wide financial
statements, rather than reported as expenditure. Proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as
liabilities in the government-wide financial statements, rather than as another financing source.
Amounts paid to reduce long-term indebtedness of the reporting government are reported as a
reduction of the related liability, rather than as expenditure.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. As applicable, the City also chooses to eliminate the indirect costs between
governmental activities to avoid the “doubling up” effect.

2. Fund Fllianclal Statements

The underlying accounting system of the City is organized and operated on the basis of separate
funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund
are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities,
fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Governmental resources are
allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be
spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.
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Fund financial statements for the City’s governmental and proprietary funds are presented after the
government-wide financial statements. These statements display information about major funds
individually, and nonmajor funds in the aggregate for governmental and enterprise funds.

Governmental Funds - Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be
available when they are collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. Franchise fees, licenses, sales
taxes, gas taxes, operating and capital grants, and interest associated with the current fiscal period
are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable only when cash is
received by the City.

Under the current financial resources measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities
are generally included on the balance sheet. - The reported fund balance is considered to be
measure of “available spendable resources.” Governmental funds operating statements present
increases (revenue and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing
uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources and uses of
“available spendable resources” during a period.

Any non-current portions of long-term receivables (special assessments) due to governmental funds
are reported on their balance sheets in spite of their spending measurement focus.

Non-current portions of other long-term receivables are offset by fund balance reserve accounts.
Because of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for governmental fund
types excludes amounts represented by non-current liabilities. Since they do not affect net current
assets, such long-term amounts are not recognized as governmental fund type expenditures or
fund liabilities.

Amounts expended to acquire capital assets are recorded as expenditures in the year that
resources were expended, rather than as fund assets. The proceeds of long-term debt are recorded
as another financing source rather than as a fund liability. However, debt service expenditures, as
well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded
only when payment is due.

Proprietary Funds - The City’s Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund is a proprietary fund. In the fund
financial statements, proprietary funds are presented using the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized when they are earned and expenses are recognized when the related
goods and services are delivered. In the fund financial statements, proprietary funds are presented
using the economic resources measurement focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities
(whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activity are included on their balance sheets.
Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses)
in total net position. The City applies all GASB pronouncements as well as all FASB Statements
and Interpretations, APB Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins, issued on or before
November 30, 1989, which do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

Proprietary fund operation revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in
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which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as
subsides, taxes, and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary
activities.

Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the fund financial statements,
rather than reported as expenditure. Proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as a liability in the
fund financial statements, rather than as another financing source. Amounts paid to reduce long-
term indebtedness are reported as a reduction of the related liabilities, rather than as an expense.

C. Basis of Accounting - GASB Statement 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets,
liabilities, revenues or expenditures, expenses of both fund category and the governmental and
enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds. The City has used GASB 34 minimum
criteria for major fund determination. The City has five major funds and four nonmajor funds.

1 Governmental Major Funds:
General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for
all financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Downtown Redevelopment Fund - Used to account for tax increment and other revenues associated
with the City’s Community Redevelopment Agency and the expenditure of these funds in the
redevelopment district.

Street Improvement Fund - used to account for expenditures associated with the City’s street
paving program.

Community Development Block Grant Fund - Established by the City to administer its Community
Development Block Grant Program, which was awarded the City by the Department of Economic
Opportunity to assist in sewer system upgrades.

2. Proprietary Major Fund:
Enterprise Fund - The Enterprise Fund accounts for the revenues, expenses, assets, and liabilities
associated with the City operated water, sewer, and solid waste disposal services.

3. Non-current Governmental Assets/Llabllitles:

GASB Statement 34 requires non-current governmental assets, such as land and building, and non-
current governmental liabilities, such as general obligation bonds and capital leases, be reported in
the governmental activities column in the government-wide statement of net position.

D. Assets, Liabliitles and Net Position or Equity

1. Cash and Investments - Cash includes amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term
money market investment accounts. Investments, consisting of certificates of deposit, are
stated at cost which approximates market value. All such deposits and investments are
insured and collateralized as required by state law.

2, Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly
liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. As
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7.

of September 30, 2018, the City’s cash consisted solely of checking accounts and money
market accounts; it has no other cash equivalents.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - The City provides an allowance for Enterprise Fund
accounts receivable that may become uncollectible. At September 30, 2018, this
allowance account totaled $63,648 based upon prior collection history. No other
allowances for doubtful accounts are maintained since other fund accounts receivable are
considered to be fully collectible as reported at September 30, 2018.

Recelvables and Payables - Activity between funds that are representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as
“due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental
activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial
statements as “internal balances.”

Inventorles - The costs of governmental inventories are recorded as expenditures when
purchased rather than when consumed. The actual amounts of any such inventory type
goods on hand at year end would not be material.

Restricted Assets - As applicable, year to year, certain proceeds of enterprise fund debt, as
well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on
the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants.

The fund balance related to the City Community Redevelopment Agency is also classified
as restricted due to legal limitations on the use of these funds.

Encumbrances - Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and
other commitments for the expenditures of monies are recorded in order to reserve that
portion of the applicable appropriation, is not utilized by the City.

Capltal Assets - Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure
assets (e.g., streets, bridges, right-of-ways, and similar items), are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost
of $500 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Except for roads and
bridges constructed prior to October 1, 1981, assets are recorded at historical cost. Roads
and bridges constructed prior to October 1, 1981 are generally not reported. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donations.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend its useful life are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-
type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the City, as well as of component units, are depreciated
using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:
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Assets Years

Building and improvements 40
Machinery and equipment 5-10
Street and related infrastructure 20-40

Capitalization of Interest - Interest related to borrowings are capitalized during the
construction period. These costs are netted against applicable interest earnings on
construction fund investments. During the current period, the City did not have any
capitalized interest.

Deferred Revenues - Deferred revenues reported in government-wide financial statements
represent unearned revenues. The deferred revenues will be recognized as revenue in the
fiscal year they are earned in accordance with the accrual basis of accounting. Deferred
revenues reported in governmental fund financial statements represent unearned revenues
which are measurable but not available and, in accordance with the modified accrual basis
of accounting, are reported as deferred revenues. During the current period, the City did not
have any deferred revenues. . .

Accrued Compensated Absences - The City accrues accumulated unpaid vacation and sick
leave when earned by the employee. The current portion is the amount estimated to be
used in the following year. The non-current portion is the amount estimated to be used in
subsequent fiscal years. Both the current and non-current estimated accrued compensated
absences amounts for governmental funds are maintained separately and represent a
reconciling item between the fund and government-wide presentation.

Fund Balances -

A. Governmental Funds
As of September 30, 2018, fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as
follows:

Non-spendable - amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in non-
spendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact.

Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of
constitutional provisions, charter requirements or enabling legislation or because of
constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the
laws or regulations of other governments.

Committed ~ amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a
formal action of the Commission. The Commission is the highest level of decision
making authority for the Commission. Commitments may be established, modified,
or rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions approved by the Commission.

Assigned - amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or
committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. Under the City's
adopted policy, only the Commission may assign amounts for specific purposes.

Unassigned - all other spendable amounts.
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As of September 30, 2018, fund balances are composed of the following:

Governmental Funds

Restricted, transportation $ 317,713
Restricted, community redevelopment 79,256
Restricted, CDBG 277
Unassigned 684,922

$ 1,082,168

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
fund balance is available, the City considers restricted funds to have been spend first.
When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund
balances are available, the City considers amounts to have been spend first out of
committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the
Commission has provided otherwise in its commitment or assighment actions.

B. Proprietary Funds

Restrictions of equity show amounts that are not appropriated for expenditure or are legally
restricted for specific uses.

As of September 30, 2018, net position balances are composed of the following:

Amount
Invested in capital assets, net $ 203,891
Restricted - debt service 106,791
Restricted - customer deposits 138,621
Unrestricted 360,010
$ 809,313
NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of Differences Between the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and the
Government-wide Statement of Net Position.

“Total fund balances” of the City's governmental funds $1,082,168 differs from “net position” of
governmental activities $2,650,613 reported in the statement of net position. This difference
primarily results from the long-term economic focus of the statement of net position versus the
current financial resources focus of the governmental funds balance sheet.

Capital related jtems

When capital assets (property, plant, equipment) that are to be used in governmental activities are
purchased or constructed, the cost of these assets are reported as expenditures in governmental
funds. However, the statement of net position included those capital assets among the assets of
the City as a whole.
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Cost of capital assets $ 19,211,967
Accumulated depreciation (17,430,076)
Total $ 1,781,891

Long-term debt transactions

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City’s governmental activities are not due and payable in the
current periocd and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. All liabilities (both current and
long-term) are reported in the statement of net position. Balances at September 30, 2018, were:

Compensated absences $ (14,173)
Net pension liability (276,838)
Total $ (291,011)

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position in a future perlod while
deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position in a future period and
accordingly, are not reported in the governmental fund statements. However, the statement of net
position included those deferred outflows/inflows of resources.

Deferred outflows $ 114,314
Deferred inflows (36,749)
Total $ 77,565
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CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA
NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance and the Government-wide Statement of Net Position

Total Capital Pension Liability Long-Term Statement
Governmental Related Deferred Debt of
Funds Items Inflows/Outflows Transactions Net Position
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,045,203 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,045,203
Accounts receivabie, net 26,628 - - - 26,628
Due from other governments 12,255 - - - 12,255
Due from other funds 42 657 - - - 42,657
Prepald expenses 8,970 8,970
Capital assets, net - 1,781,891 - - 1,781,891
Total assets — 1135713 1,781,891 - - 2,917,604
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS - - 114,314 - 114,314
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabllities
Accounts payable 7,439 - - - 7,439
Accrued llabitities 10,090 - - - 10,090
Due to other funds 36,016 - - - 36,016
Accrued compensated absences - - - 14,173 14,173
Net pension liability - - 276,838 - 276.833_
Total liabllities 53,545 - 276,838 14,173 344,556
DEFERRED INFLOWS - - 36,749 - 36,749
FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION $ 1,082,168 $ 1,781,891 $ (199,273) $ (14473) $ 2,650,613
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B. Explanation of Differences Between Governmental Fund Operating Statements and the
Statement of Actlvities

The “net change in fund balances” for governmental funds $(30,010) differs from the “change in
net position” for governmental activities $(116,046) reported in the statement of activities. The
differences arise primarily from the long-term economic focus of the statement of activities versus
the current financial resources focus of the governmental funds. The effect of the differences is
illustrated below.

Capital related items

When capital assets that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased or constructed,
the resources expended for those assets are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
However, in the statement of activities, the costs of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. As a result, fund balances decrease by the
amount of financial resources expended, whereas net position decrease by the amount of
depreciation expense charges for the year.

Capital outlay $ 39,053

Depreciation expense (118,670)
Difference $ (79,617)

Long-term debt related items

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Net decrease in compensated absences $ 8,677
Net increase in pension liability (100)
Net change in deferred outflows and inflows (14,996)

Total $ (6,419)
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CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA

NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B. Explanation of Differences Between Governmental Funds Operating Statement and the Statement of Activities

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current expenditures
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Economic environment
Human services
Culture/recreatlon
Capltal outlay
General government
Transportation
Culture/recreation
Public Safety
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Interfund transfers In
Interfund transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change In fund balances/net position

Fund balances/net position at beginning of year
Fund balances/net position at end of year

Total Capital Penslon Liabllity Long-Term Statement
Governmental Related Deferred Debt of
Funds Items lnflows/Outﬂows Transactions Actlivities
$ 617,393 $ - $ - $ - $ 517,393
15,126 - - - 15,126
10,999 - - - 10,999
154,997 - - - 154,997
79,436 - - - 79,436
55,288 - - - 55,288
833,239 - - - 833,239
367,912 16,013 9,635 (8,677) 384,883
118,822 31,218 730 - 150,770
239,611 22,047 2,891 - 264,549
- 764 - - 764
8,502 - 183 - 8,685
160,083 48,628 1,657 - 210,368
1,160 (1,160) - - -
16,647 (16,647) - - -
21,246 (21,246) - - -
933,983 79,617 15,096 (8,677) 1,020,019
(100,744) (79,617) (15,096) 8,677 (186,780)
78,959 - - - 78,959
(8,225) - - - (8,225)
70,734 - - - 70,734
(30,010) (79,617) (15,096) 8,677 (116,046)
1,112,178 1,861,508 184,177) (22,850) 2,766,669
$ 1,082,168 $ 1,781,891 $ 199,273) $ (14,173) $ 2,660,613
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NOTE 3. LEGAL COMPLIANCE-BUDGETS

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

1. Prior to September 1, the City Manager develops a proposed operating budget for the fiscal
year commencing the following October 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

3. Prior to September 30, the budget is legally enacted by the City Commission through
passage of an ordinance.

4, Any revision that alters the total expenditures of any fund or transfers budgeted amounts
between departments within any fund must be approved by the City Commission.

5. Budgets for all City funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended
by the City Commission. Individual amendments were not material in relation to the
original appropriations which were amended.

NOTE 4. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits. The book balances of the City deposits totaling $1,859,698 were insured by federal
depository insurance or pledged collateral under state law.

Investments. Under state law, the City is allowed to invest surplus funds in guaranteed obligations
of the U.S. government, interest bearing accounts of financial institutions which are legally secured,
and the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund. At year end, all invested funds consisted of
bank cash accounts which were fully insured or collateralized. These deposits are classified as
Category 1 in accordance with GASB Standard No. 3, “Deposits with Financial Institutions,
Investments, and Reserve Repurchase Agreements.”

NOTE 5. PROPERTY TAX REVENUES

All real and tangible personal property taxes are due and payable on November 1 of each year or as
soon thereafter as the assessment roll is certified by the County Property Appraiser. The County
Tax Collector mails to each property owner on the assessment roll a notice of taxes levied by the
City and other governmental entlties in the County. Taxes may be paid upon receipt of such notice
with discounts at the rate of four percent (4%) if paid in the month of November, three percent (3%)
if paid in the month of December, two percent (2%) if paid in the month of January, and one
percent (1%) if paid in the month of February. Taxes paid during the month of March are without
discount. All unpaid taxes on real and tangible personal property become delinquent taxes,
including applicable tax certificate sales, tax deed sales, and tangible personal property seizure and
sales are provided for by the laws of Florida. Due to those collection procedures, no material
amounts of delinquent taxes were due the City at year end. Collections of City taxes and
remittances are accounted for in the County Tax Collector's office.
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NOTE 6. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2018, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets:
Land $ 84,551 $ - $ - 84,551
cip 40,337 - (40,337) -
Buildings 2,862,761 - - 2,962,761
Other improvements 15,480,607 58,583 - 15,549,190
Machinery and equipment 600,353 20,807 (5,695) 615,465
Total capital assets 19,178,609 79,330 (46,032) 19,211,967
Less accumulated depreciation (17,317,101) (118,670) 5,695 (17,430,076)
Governmental actlvities capital
assets, net - - $ 1861508 $  (39,280) $ (40,337) 1,781,891
Business-type actlvities:
Land $ 541,813 $ - $ - 541,813
Bulldings 153,795 - - 153,795
Improvements other than bulldings 5,506,822 42,895 - 5,549,717
CiP 169,924 5,266 - 175,190
Machinery and equipment 243,800 - - 243,800
Total capltal assets 6,616,154 48,161 - 6,664,315
Less accumulated depreciation (5,518,154) (71,270) - (5,589,424)
Business-type activities capital
assets, net. $ 1098000 $ (23,109) $ - 1,074,891
Depreclation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows:
Governmental activities:
General Government $ 16,013
Public Safety 31,218
Transportation 22,047
Parks and recreation 48,628
Economic 764
Total depreciation expense - governmental entities $ 118,670
Business-type activities:
Water $ 40,980
Sewer 30,290
$ 71,270
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NOTE 7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES
The following Is a schedule of interfund receivables and payables at September 30, 2018.

Fund Receivable Payable
General $ 42,000 $ 36,016
Enterprise 35,359 42,000
CRA 657

78,016 78.016

NOTE 8. INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers for the year ended September 30, 2018, consisted of the following:

Fund Transfers in Transfers out
. General . .09 78,107 . $ 657 .
Enterprise 5,266 76,000
CDBG - 5,461
CRA 852 2,107

$ 84,225 $ 84,225

Transfers were used for grant funded capital projects and operating expenditures.

NOTE 9. RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE BALANCES
Recelvables

Receivables at September 30, 2018, were as follows:

Due from
Others/
Governmental Total
Account Units Receivables
Governmental activities: $ 26,628 $ 12,255 $ 38,883
Business-type activities: 60,628 84,821 145,449

$ 87,256 $ 97,076 $ 184,332

Based upon collection history, the City has included a reserve for doubtful accounts for its
Enterprise Fund accounts receivable of $63,648.

Payables
Payables at September 30, 2018, were as follows:
Vendors
Governmental activities: $ 7,439
Business-type activities: 7,563

$ 15,002
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NOTE 10. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Governmental Activities
Summary of changes In governmental activities long-term liabilities

The following summarizes the changes in the City’'s governmental long-term liabilities during the
year ended September 30, 2018:

Due

Balance Balance Within
October 1,2017 Increases Decreases September 30, 2018 One Year
Compensated absences $ 22,850 $ - $ (8677 $ 14,173 $ 2126
Pension liability 276,738 100 - 276,838 -
$ 299,588 $ 100 $ (8677) $ 291,011 $ 2126

Business-type Activities
A summary of proprietary fund debt as of September 30, 2018, follows:

Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds 1980 - Gross revenues of the water and sewer system primarily,
and secondarily the City’s proceeds of its utility services taxes and guaranteed entitiement portion
of State Revenue Sharing are pledged to service this debt. The outstanding balance at September
30, 2018, is $35,000. The remaining bonds mature annually from September 1, 2009 through
September 1, 2019, at averaged annual payments of $37,000, including interest at 5%.

Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds 1998 - Gross revenues of the water and sewer system primarily,
and secondarily the City's proceeds of its utility services taxes are pledged to service this debt. The
outstanding balance at September 30, 2018, is $836,000. The remaining bonds mature annually
from September 1, 2006 through September 1, 2037, at averaged payments of $66,377, including
interest at 4.5%.

Reserve Funds - The following reserves are required to be maintained for the revenue bonds:

Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds 1980 - A reserve is required by the bond ordinance to
accumulate sufficient funds to be used for: (a) repair and replacement of the water system due to
catastrophe, (b) constructing improvements to increase net revenues of the Enterprise Fund, and
(c) payment of any principal and interest if the funds of the Sinking Fund are insufficient. The
reserve is maintained by transferring monthly from the revenue account $310, until a maximum
amount of $37,200 is attained. This reserve was fully funded at September 30, 2018.

Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds 1998 - A reserve is required by the bond ordinance to
accumulate sufficient funds to be used for: (a) repair and replacement of the water system due to

catastrophe, (b) constructing improvements to increase net revenues of the Enterprise Fund, and
(c) payment of any principal and interest if the funds of the Sinking Fund are insufficient. The
reserve is maintained by transferring monthly from the revenue account $560, until a maximum
amount of $67,148 is attained. This reserve was fully funded at September 30, 2018.

Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity, including $426,660 of interest, are as
follows:
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Fiscal year ending 1980 1998

September 30 Bonds Bonds Total
2019 $ 36,750 $ 66,562 $ 103,312
2020 - 66,460 66,460
2021 - 67,010 67,010

2022-2026 - 331,366 331,366
2027-2031 - 332,947 332,947
2032-2036 - 331,775 331,775
2037-2040 - 64,790 64,790

$ 36,750 $ 1,260,910 $ 1,297,660

A schedule of changes in proprietary fund debt follows:

Due Within
10/1/2017 Increases Becreases 30, 8 1 year
Bonds payable $ 933,000 $ - $ (62,000) $ 871,000 $ 64,000
Compensated absences 8,991 - {3,803) 5,188 1,349

Net pension liability 302,403 112 - 302,515 -
$ 1,244,394 $ 112 $ (65,803) $ 1,178,703 $ 65,349

NOTE 11. COST-SHARING MULTIPLE EMPLOYER DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS FLORIDA
RETIREMENT SYSTEM PENSION PLAN AND THE RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE
SUBSIDY PROGRAM

Florida Retirement System:

General Information - All of the City’s employees participate in the Florida Retirement System
(FRS). As provided by Chapters 121 and 112, Florida Statutes, the FRS provides two cost sharing,
multiple employer defined benefit plans administered by the Florida Department of Management
Services, Division of Retirement, including the FRS Pension Plan (“Pension Plan”) and the Retiree
Health Insurance Subsidy (“HIS Plan”). Under Section 121.4501, Fiorida Statutes, the FRS also
provides a defined contribution plan (“Investment Plan”) alternative to the FRS Pension Pian, which
is administered by the State Board of Administration (“SBA"). As a general rule, membership in the
FRS is compulsory for all employees working in a regularly established position for a state agency,
county, government, district school board, state university, community college, or a participating
city or special district within the State of Florida. The FRS provides retirement and disability
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
Benefits are established by Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 60S, Florida Administrative
Code. Amendments to the law can be made only by an act of the Florida State Legislature.

The State of Florida annually issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for the FRS. The latest available report may
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be obtained by writing to the State of Florida Division of Retirement, Department of Management
Services, P.O. Box 8000, Tallahassee, Florida 32315-9000, or from the Web site:

www.dms.myflorida.com/workforce operations/retirement/publications.

Pension Plan

Plan Description - The Pension Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan, with a Deferred Retirement Option Program (“DROP") for eligible employees.

Benefits Provided - Benefits under the Pension Plan are computed on the basis of age, average
final compensation, and service credit. For Pension Plan members enrolled before July 1, 2011,
Regular class members who retire at or after age 62 with at least six years of credited service or 30
years of service regardless of age are entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life,
equal to 1.6% of their final average compensation based on the five highest years of salary, for
each year of credited service. Vested members with less than 30 years of service may retire before
age 62 and receive reduced retirement benefits. Special Risk Administrative Support class
members who retire at or after age 55 with at least six years of credited service or 25 years of
service regardless of age are entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 1.6%
of their final average compensation based on the five highest years of salary, for each year of
credited service. Special Risk class members (sworn law enforcement officers, firefighters, and
correctional officers) who retire at or after age 55 with at least six years of credited service, or with
25 years of service regardless of age, are entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life,
equal to 3.0% of their final average compensation based on the five highest years of salary for
each year of credited service. Senior Management Service class members who retire at or after age
62 with at least six years of credited service or 30 years of service regardless of age are entitled to
a retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 2.0% of their final average compensation
based on the five highest years of salary for each year of credited service. Elected Officers’ class
members who retire at or after age 62 with at least six years of credited service or 30 years of
service regardless of age are entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 3.0%
(3.33% for judges and justices) of their final average compensation based on the five highest years
of salary for each year of credited service.

For Plan members enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, the vesting requirement is extended to eight
years of credited service for all these members and increasing normal retirement to age 65 or 33
years of service regardless of age for Regular, Senior Management Service, and Elected Officers’
class members, and to age 60 or 30 years of service regardless of age for Special Risk and Special
Risk Administrative Support class members. Also, the final average compensation for all these
members will be based on the eight highest years of salary.

As provided in Section 121.101, Florida Statutes, if the member is initially enrolled in the
Pension Plan before July 1, 2011, and all service credit was accrued before July 1, 2011, the
annual cost-of living adjustment Is three percent per year. If the member is Initially enrolled
before July 1, 2011, and has service credit on or after July 1, 2011, there is an individually
calculated cost-of-living adjustment. The annual cost-of-living adjustment is a proportion of three
percent determined by dividing the sum of the pre-July 2011 service credit by the total service
credit at retirement multiplied by three percent. Plan members initially enrolled on or after July
1, 2011, will not have a cost-of-living adjustment after retirement.

In addition to the above benefits, the DROP program allows eligible members to defer receipt of
monthly retirement benefit payments while continuing employment with a FRS employer for a
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period not to exceed 60 months after electing to participate. Deferred monthly benefits are held in
the FRS Trust Fund and accrue interest. There are no required contributions by DROP participants

Contributions - Effective July 1, 2014, all enrolled members of the FRS, other than DROP
participants, are required to contribute three percent of their salary to the FRS. In addition to
member contributions, governmental employers are required to make contributions to the FRS
based on state-wide contribution rates established by the Fiorida Legislature. These rates are
updated as of July 1 of each year. The employer contribution rates by job class for the periods from
October 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017 and from July 1, 2017 through September 30, 2018,
respectively, were as follows: Regular—7.92% and 8.26%; Special Risk Administrative Support—
34.63% and 34.98%; Special Risk—23.27% and 24.50%; Senior Management Service—22.71% and
24.06%; Elected Officers—45.50% and 48.70%; and DROP participants—13.26% and 14.03%.
These employer contribution rates include 1.66% and 1.66% HIS Plan subsidy for the periods
October 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017 and from July 1, 2017 through September 30, 2018,
respectively.

The City’s contributions, including employee contributions, to the Pension Plan totaled $43,115 for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions - At September 30, 2018, the City reported a liability of $414,140
for its proportionate share of the Pension Plan’s net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of July 1, 2018, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2018. The City’s proportionate share
of the net pension liability was based on the City’s 2017-18 fiscal year contributions relative to the
2016-17 fiscal year contributions of all participating members. At June 30, 2018, the City’s
proportionate share was .001374944 percent, which was a decrease of 0.65 percent from its
proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2017.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $31,848. In
addition the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Description of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual
experlence $ 35,084 $ 1,273

Changes In assumptlons 135,321 -

Net diffference between projected and actual
earnings on Pension Plan investments - 31,997

Changes In proportion and differences
between City Pension Plan contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 35,943 15,044

City Pension Plan contributions subsequent
to the measurement date 9,638 -

Total $ 215,986 $ 48,314
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The deferred outflows of resources related to the Pension Plan, totaling $9,638 resulting from City
contributions to the Plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of
the net pension liabiiity in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the Pension Plan will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

September 30 Amount
2019 $ 61,229
2020 41,786
2021 5826
2022 21824
2023 18,605

Thereafter 2,164
$ 158,034

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension IiaBiIity in the June 30, 203!.8 actuarial valuation \.;vas
determined using the following actuarial assumption, applied to all period included in the
measurement:

Inflation 2.60%
Salary increases 3.25%, average, Including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.00%, net of pension plan investment

expense, including inflation
Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB tables.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018, valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2013.

The long-term expected rate of return on Pension Plan investments was not based on historical
returns, but instead is based on a forward-looking capital market economic model. The allocation
policy’s description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes
shown below. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions
and includes an adjustment for the inflation assumption. The target allocation and best estimates
of arithmetic and geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the
following table:
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Compound

Annual Annual
Target Arithmetic {Geometric) Standard
Asset Class Allocation (1) Return Return Deviation
Cash 1.00% 2.90% 2.90% 1.80%
Fixed income 18.00% 4.40% 4.30% 4.00%
Global equity 54.00% 7.60% 6.30% 17.00%
Real estate 11.00% 6.60% 6.00% 11.30%
Private equity 10.00% 10.70% 7.80% 26.50%
Streteglc Investments 6.00% 6.00% 5.70% 8.60%
Total ~ 100.00%
Assumed Inflation - Mean 2.60% 1.90%

(1) As outlined In the Pension Plan's Investment policy

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%. The
Pension Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the discount rate for
calculation the total pension liability is equal to the long-term expected rate of return.

Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Position Liability to Changes in the Discount

Rate - The following represents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower
(6.00%) or one percentage point higher (8.00%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
Board's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 755,823 $ 414140 $ 130,352

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information regarding the Pension Plan’s fiduciary
net position Is available in the separately issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State-Administered
Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Payabies to the Pension Plan - At September 30, 2018, the City reported a payable in the amount
of $4,213 for outstanding contributions to the Pension Plan required for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2018.

HIS Plan

Plan Description - The HIS Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
established under Section 112.363, Fiorida Statutes, and may be amended by the Florida
legislature at any time. The benefit Is a monthly payment to assist retirees of State-administered
retirement systems in paying their health insurance costs and is administered by the Florida
Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement.
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Benefits Provided - For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, eligible retirces and
beneficiaries received a monthly HIS payment of $5 for each year of creditable service completed
at the time of retirement, with a minimum HIS payment of $30 and a maximum HIS payment of
$150 per month. To be eligible to receive these benefits, a retiree under a State-administered
retirement system must provide proof of health insurance coverage, which may include medicare.

Contributions - The HIS Plan is funded by required contributions from FRS participating employers
as set by the Florida Legislature. Employer contributions are a percentage of gross compensation
for all active FRS members. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, the HIS contribution for
the period October 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017 and from July 1, 2017 through September 30,
2018 was 1.66% and 1.66%, respectively. The City contributed 100% of its statutorily required
contributions for the current and preceding three years. HIS Plan contribution are deposited in a
separate trust fund from which payments are authorized. HIS Plan benefits are not guaranteed and
are subject to annual legislative appropriation. In the event legislative appropriation or available
funds fail to provide full subsidy benefits to all participants, benefits may be reduced or cancelled.

The City’s contributions to the HIS Plan totaled $9,314 for the fiscal year ended September 30,

- 2018. :

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions - At September 30, 2018, the City reported a liability of $165,213
for its proportionate share of the HIS Plan’s net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2018. The City's proportionate
share of the net pension liability was based on the City’s 2017-18 fiscal year contributions
relative to the 2016-17 fiscal year contributions of all participating members. At June 30,
2018, the City's proportionate share was .001560951 percent, which was a decrease of 1.7
percent from its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2017.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $270. In
addition the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred in flows of resources related
to pensions from the following sources:
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Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Description of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual
experlence $ 2,529 $ 281

Changes In assumptions 18,374 17,468

Net difference between projected and actual
eamings on HIS Plan investments 100 -

Changes in proportion and differences
between City HIS Plan contributions and
proportionate share of contributions - 11,103

City HIS Plan contrlbut_lons subsequent . ]
to the measurement date 1,977 -

Total $ 22,980 $ 28,852

The deferred outflows of resources related to the HIS Plan, totaling $1,977 resulting from City
contributions to the HIS Plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the HIS
Plan will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

September 30 Amount
2019 $ (5,482)
2020 (5,462)
2021 (3,826)
2022 (859)
2023 5,334

Thereafter 2,446

$ (7,849)

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability in the July 1, 2018, actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation 2.60%
Salary increases 3.25%, average, including inflation
Municipal bond rate 3.87%

Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB tables.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018, valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2013.
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Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.87%. In general,
the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the single rate equivalent to
discounting at the long-term expected rate of return for benefit payments prior to the projected
depletion date. Because the HIS benefit Is essentially funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, the
depletion date is considered to be immediate, and the single equivalent discount rate Is equal to
the municipal bond rate selected by the HIS Plan sponsor. The Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-
Bond Municipal Bond Index was adopted as the applicable municipal bond index.

Rate - The following represents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 3.87%, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension
liabllity would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower
(2.87%) or one percentage point higher (4.87%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.87%) (3.87%) (4.87%)
‘Board's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 188,168 $ 165213 §$ 146,079

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information regarding the HIS Plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State-Administered
Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Payables to the Pension Plan - At September 30, 2018, the City reported a payable in the amount
of $910 for outstanding contributions to the HIS Plan required for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2018.

Investment Plan

The SBA administers the defined contribution plan officially titled the FRS Investment Plan. The
investment Plan is reported in the SBA's annual financial statements and in the State of Florida
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

As provided in Section 121.4501, Florida Statutes, eligible FRS members may elect to participate
in the Investment Plan in lieu of the FRS defined benefit plan. City employees participating in
DROP are not eligible to participate in the Investment Plan. Employer and employee
contributions, including amounts contributed to individual member's accounts, are defined by law,
but the ultimate benefit depends in part on the performance of investment funds. Benefit
terms, including contribution requirements, for the Investment Plan are established and may be
amended by the Florida Legislature. The Investment Plan is funded with the same employer
and employee contribution rates that are based on salary and membership class (Regular Class,
Elected City Officers, etc.), as the Pension Plan. Contributions are directed to individual member
accounts, and the individual members allocate contributions and account balances among
various approved investment choices. Costs of administering the Investment Plan, including the
FRS Financial Guidance Program, are funded through an employer contribution of 0.04 percent of
payroll and by forfeited benefits of plan members. Allocations to the investment member's
accounts during the 2016-17 fiscal year, as established by Section 121.72, Florida Statutes, are
based on a percentage of gross compensation, by class, as follows: Regular class 3.30%, Special
Risk Administrative Support class 4.95%, Special Risk class 11.00%, Senior Management Service
class 4.67% and City Elected Officers class 8.34%.
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For all membership classes, employees are immediately vested in their own contributions and
are vested after one year of service for employer contributions and investment earnings. If an
accumuiated benefit obligation for service credit originally earned under the Pension Plan is
transferred to the Investment Plan, the member must have the years of service required for
Pension Plan vesting (including the service credit represented by the transferred funds) to be
vested for these funds and the earnings on the funds. Nonvested employer contributions are placed
in a suspense account for up to five years. If the employee returns to FRS-covered employment
within the five-year period, the employee will regain control over their account. If the employee
does not return within the five-year period, the employee will forfeit the accumulated account
balance. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, the information for the amount of
forfeitures was unavailable from the SBA; however, management believes that these amounts, if
any, would be immaterial to the County.

After termination and applying to receive benefits, the member may rollover vested funds to
another qualified plan, structure a periodic payment under the Investment Plan, receive a lump
sum distribution, leave the funds invested for future distribution, or any combination of these
options. Disability coverage is provided; the member may either transfer the account balance to
the Pension Plan when approved for disability retirement to receive guaranteed lifetime
monthly benefits under the Pension Plan, or remain in the Investment Plan and rely upon that
account balance for retirement income.

The City’s Investment Plan pension expense totaled $0 for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2018.

NOTE 12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The State of Florida, Department of Corrections, Lake Butler Reception and Medical Center RMC
has been a major utility customer of the City. For the year ended September 30, 2018, the RMC
facility accounted for approximately 57% of the City’'s sewer revenues and 31% of its water
revenue. The City and the Florida Department of Corrections have a long-term agreement whereby
the City would provide wastewater treatment services for a minimum of twenty years. Subsequent
to the year end a unilateral decision was made by the Florida Department of Corrections to
discontinue water services. This has the potential to result in a reduction of nearly $90,000 of
utility revenue. Efforts are currently being made to mitigate the apparent losses through other
agreement negotiations.

NOTE 13. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial insurance.
Insurance against losses are provided for the following types of risk:

Workers' Compensation and Employer’s Liability
General and Automobile Liability

Real and Personal Property Damage

Public Officials’ Liability

Accidental Death and Dismemberment
Employee Dishonesty Bond
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NOTE 14. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies, principally the State and Federal governments. Any disallowed claims, including
amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although
the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The City has been advised that it may become a party to certain lawsuits alleging property damage
and other issues. Although the City may incur expenses relating to these potential lawsuits, the
City Attorney believes that any adverse outcomes would not have a material financial effect on the

City.
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CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2018
Varlance
With Final
Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes
Ad Valorem taxes $ 66,711 $ 80,721 $ 77,568 $ (3,153)
Sales and use taxes
Local option gas tax/aiternative fuel 38,500 45,000 42,771 (2,229)
Discretionary sales tax 97,000 97,000 115,971 18,971
Franchise fees
Etectricity 124,500 138,000 130,726 (7,274)
Utility service taxes
Electricity 34,500 34,500 36,521 2,021
Gas 2,430 2,430 3,316 886
Communications services tax 49,129 68,000 59,038 (8,962)
Total taxés : 412,770 465,651 465,911 260
Licenses and permits
City occupatlonal licenses 9,000 9,000 11,306 2,306
Other licenses and permits 1,100 1,000 3,820 2,820
Total licenses and permits 10,100 10,000 15,126 5,126
Fines 3,040 5,000 10,999 5,999
Intergovernmental
Federal payments In lieu of taxes
Unlon County Housing Authority 7,500 6,500 - (6,500)
FRDAP grant 150,000 7,903 7,874 (29)
State shared revenues -
General government -
State revenue sharing 60,500 60,500 68,541 8,041
Muricipal gas tax 19,000 19,000 21,420 2,420
Moblle home licenses 1,000 1,125 832 (293)
Atcoholic beverage licenses 1,000 1,000 352 (648)
Local government half-cent sales tax 53,000 53,800 50,535 (3,365)
Total ntergovernmental 292,000 149,928 149,554 (374)
Charges for services
Physical Environment 1,500 1,700 1,300 (400)
Transportation
Street malntenance 77,093 78,215 78,136 (79)
Total charges for services 78,593 79,915 79,436 (479)
Miscellaneous
Interest 650 650 687 37
Rents and royalties
Communlty Center 18,000 18,500 18,503 3
Other rentals 11,500 11,500 13,062 1,562
Speclal events 1,000 1,700 1,700 -
Other 5,563 6,566 20,333 13,767
Total miscellanecus 36,713 38,916 54,285 15,369
Total revenues 833,216 749,410 775,311 25,901
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CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2018

Variance
With Ftnal
Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
EXPENDITURES
General government
Legislative
Personnel services $ 69,597 $ 69,597 $ 71,066 $ (1,469)
Operating expenses 8,357 8,257 4,128 4,129
Total legislative 77,954 77,854 75,194 2,660
Executlve -
Personnel services 103,173 135,627 134,634 993
Operating expenses 4,344 5,145 11,210 (6,065)
Totai executive 107,517 140,772 145,844 (5,072)
Financlal and admlnistrative . . .
Personnel services 54,408 55,824 57,830 (2,006)
Operating expenses 57,398 55,996 56,927 (931)
Capltal outlay 1,600 1,660 1,160 500
Total financlal and adminlistrative 113,306 113,480 115,917 (2,437)
Legal counsel
Operating expenses 14,200 16,000 16,075 (75)
14,200 16,000 16,075 (75)
Other general government
Operating expenses 9,113 14,000 16,042 (2,042
Total other general government 9,113 14,000 16,042 (2,042
Total general government 322,090 362,106 369,07-2— {6,966)
Public safety
Code enforcement
Personnel services 15,332 15,645 15,420 225
Operating expenses 413 100 - 100
Law enfcrcement
Operating expenses 75,000 75,000 75,000 -
Total cede and law enforcement 90,745 90,745 90,420 325
Fire control
Operating expenses 15,374 11,864 10,524 1,340
Total fire control 15,374 11,864 10,524 1,340
Other public safety
Personnel services 24,749 21,749 17,878 3,871
Operating expenses 1,968 668 - 668
Total other public safety 26,717 22417 17,878 4,539
Total public safety 132,836 125,026 118,822 6,203
Physical environment
Operating expense 250 - - -
Total physical envircnment 250 - - -
Transportation
Roads and streets
Personnel services 80,964 94,463 98,136 (3,673)
Operating expenses 108,122 111,720 126,518 (14,798)
Capltal outlay 4,100 8,300 16,647 (8,347)
Total transportation 203,186 214,483 241,301 (26,817)
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CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2018

Variance
With Final
Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Human services
Anlimal contro!
Personnel services $ 4,207 $ 4,357 $ 4,223 $ 134
Operating expenses 3,164 2,347 1,631 716
Mosquito control
Operating expenses 6,098 6,097 2,648 3,449
Total human services 13,469 12,801 8,502 4,299
Culture/recreation
Parks and recreation
Personnel services . 39,705 . 40,604 .36,480 4,124
Operating expenses 189,904 70,198 102,469 (32,261)
Capital outlay 4,540 10,069 16,156 (6,087)
Grants and alds 11,026 7,903 7,874 29
Total culture and recreation 245,175 128,774 162,969 (34,195)
Total expenditures 917,006 843,190 900,666 (57,476)
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (83,790) (93,780) (125,355) (31,575)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Interfund transfers In 239,000 136,000 78,107 (57,893)
239,000 136,000 78,107 (57,893)
Net change In fund balance 155,210 42,220 (47,248) (89,468)
Fund balance at beginning of year 708,572 708,572 708,572 -
Fund balance at end of year $ 863,782 $ 750,792 $ 661,324 (89,468)
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CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA

DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2018

Varlance
With Final
Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes
Advatorem taxes $ 50,504 $ 52,000 $ 51482 $ (518)
Miscellaneous
Interest 50 50 74 24
Other - - 584 584
Total revenues 50,554 52,050 52,140 90
EXPENDITURES
Economilc environment
Operating expenses 32,803 39,214 13,270 25,944
Culture/recreation
Capital outlay 26,016 5,000 5,090 (80)
58,819 44,214 18,360 25,854
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures (8,265) 7,836 33,780 25,944
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Interfund transfers in - 13,339 852 (12,487)
Interfund transfers out - (21,000) (2,764) 18,236
Total other financing sources (uses) - (7,661) (1,912) 5,749
Net change in fund balances - 175 31,868 31,693
Fund balance at beginning of year 47,388 47,388 47,388 -
Fund bailance at end of year $ 47,388 $ 47,563 $ 79,256 $ 31,693
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CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA

STREET IMPROVEMENT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Flscal Year Ended September 30, 2018

Variance
With Final
Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Miscellaneous
Interest $ 275 $ 325 $ 345 $ (20)
Total revenues 275 325 345 (20)
EXPENDITURES
Economic environment
Operating expenses X 275 . - - -
Improvements -
Stdewalk project - - 14,957 (14,957)
) 275 - 14,957 (14,957)
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures - 325 (14,612) (14,937)
Interfund transfers In - 20,325 - (20,325)
Interfund transfers out - - - -
Net change in fund balance - 326 (14,612) (14,937)
Fund balance at beginning of
year 355,923 355,923 356,923 -
Fund balance at end of year $ 355,923 $ 356,248 $ 341311 $ (14,937)
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CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2018

Variance
With Final
Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ - $ 471,646 $ 5,443 $ (466,203)
Miscellaneous - - - -
Interest - - - -
Total revenues - 471,646 5,443 (466,203)
EXPENDITURES
Culture/recreation - 471,646 - . -
Total expenditures - - - -
OTHER FINANCING USES
Interfund Transfers Out - - (5,461) 5,461
. - (5,461) 5,461
Net change In fund balances - - (18) (18)
Fund balance at beginning of year 295 295 295 -
Fund balance at end of year $ 295 $ 295 $ 277 $ (18)
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CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

I Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountabllity

A.

Budgetary information. The City, in establishing its budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements follows the procedures set out in Chapters 166 and 200,
Florida Statutes. The City prepares a tentative budget, which is used by the City ata
public workshop to prepare the budgets for the coming year. Public hearings are
conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. Subsequently, these budgets are legally
adopted through the passage of a resolution at an advertised public session. Such
actions are recorded in the City’s minutes.

The budget is adopted on the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is
consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP). The only exception to the GAAP basis is the Enterprise Fund,
where depreciation is not budgeted for capital assets, while capital outlay

expenditures are budgeted and are reclassified into fixed assets. These are then

eliminated from the results of operations for financial reporting purposes in the
Enterprise Fund. Estimated beginning fund balances are considered in the
budgetary process, but are not included in the financial statements as budgeted
revenues.

The annual budget serves as the legal authorization for expenditures. Ali budget
amendments, which change the legally adopted total appropriation for a fund, are
approved by the City Commission.

If during the fiscal year, additional revenue becomes available for appropriations in
excess of those estimated in the budget, the City Commission, by resolution, may
make supplemental appropriations for the year up to the amount of such excess.

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

1 Prior to September 1, the City Manager submits to the City Commission a
proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following
October 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the
means of financing them.

2. Public hearings are conducted in August and September to obtain taxpayer
comments.

3. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an
ordinance.

4. The legal level of budgetary control is the department level; however, the

City Commission may, by formal motion, transfer appropriations between
departments and may use surplus revenues not appropriated in the budget
for any municipal purpose.

5. Budgets are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America for governmental fund types.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY OF LAKE BUTLER'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY
FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PROGRAM

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS*
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

City's proportion of the FRS net pension liabllity 0.001374944 0.001383890% 0.001097540% 0.001159024% 0.001063614%
City's proportionate share of the FRS net pension liability $ 414,140 $ 409,345 $ 277,130 $ 149,703 $ 64,896
City's proportion of the HIS net pension liability 0.001560951  0.001588008% 0.001620261% 0.001642268% 0.001645575%
City’s proportionate share of the HIS net pension liability 165,213 169,797 188,835 167,486 218,761
City's proportionate share of the total net pension liability $ §79,3563 g 579,142 $ 465,965 $ 317,189 $ 283,657
City's covered-employee payroll $ 613,565 $ 585,070 $ 579,342 $ 555,381 $ 547,603
City's proportionate share of the net pension llability (asset) as a percentage of its

covered-employee payroll 94.42% 98.99% 80.43% 57.11% 39,95%
Plan fiduclary net position as a percentage of the total pension liabllity 79.86% 83.89% 79.36% 92.00% 96.09%

Note 1) The amounts presented for each year were determined as of the June 30 year end of
the Florida Retirement System

*GASB 68 requires Information for 10 years, However, until a fuli 10-year trend is complied.
Only those years for which information s available Is presented.

See notes to the required supplementary information.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY OF LAKE BUTLER'S CONTRIBUTIONS
FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PROGRAM

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS*
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required FRS contribution $ 43115 % 42,849 § 30,953 § 32,994 $ 29,341
Contractually required HIS contribution 9,314 17,774 9,604 7,243 6,441
Total Contractually Required Contributlons 52,429 60,623 40,557 40,237 35,782
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution (52,429) (60,623) (40,557) (40,237) (35,782)
Contribution deficlency (excess) $ - $ - 3 = $ - $ N
City's covered-employee payroll $ 652,960 $ 585,070 $ 579340 $ 555,381 $ 547,603
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 8.03% 10.36% 7.00% 7.24% 6.53%

*GASB 68 requires information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is complled,
only those years for which information is avallable is presented.

See notes to the required supplementary information.
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NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
THE CITY OF LAKE BUTLER’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND
REQUIRED CONTRIBUTIONS
FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PROGRAM
For the Fiscal Year End September 30, 2018

Net Pension Liability

The components of the collective net pension liability of the participating employers for each
defined benefit plan for the measurement date of September 30, 2018, are shown below (in
thousands):

FRS HIS
Total pension liability $ 191,317,399 $ 10,816,576
Plan fiduciary net position (161,196,881) (232,463)

$ 30120518 $ 10,584,113

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total penslon liability 84.26% 2.15%

The total pension liability for each plan was determined by the plans’ actuary and reported in the
plans’ valuations dated July 1, 2018. The fiduciary net position used by the actuary to determine
the net pension liability (as shown above) was determined on the same basis used by the plan. The
fiduciary net position is reported in the financial statements and the net pension liability is
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Update procedures were not used.

The HIS actuarial valuation was prepared as of July 1, 2018. The fiduciary net position used by the
actuary to determine the net pension liability (as shown above) was determined on the same basis
used by the Plan. The fiduciary net position is reported in the financial statements and the net
pension liability is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Basls for Allocation

The employer's proportionate share reported in the pension allocation schedules was calculated
using accrued retirement contributions related to the reporting periods included in the System’s
fiscal years ending June 30, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, and 2018, respectively, for employers that
were members of the FRS and HIS during those fiscal years. For fiscal year 2018, in addition to
contributions from employers the required accrued contributions for the Division (paid on behalf of
the Division’s employees who administer the Plans) were allocated to each employer on a
proportionate basis. The Division administers the Plans, and therefore, cannot allocate a portion of
the liability to itself. Although GASB 68 encourages the use of the employers’ projected long-term
contribution effort to the retirement plan, allocating on the basis of historical employer
contributions is acceptable. The aggregate employer contribution amounts for each fiscal year
agree to the employer contribution amounts reported in the system’s CAFR for that fiscal year.

The proportion calculated based on contributions for each of the fiscal years presented in the
pension allocation schedules was applied to the net pension liability and other pension amounts
applicable for that fiscal year to determine each employer's proportionate share of the liability,
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflow of resources and associated pension expense.
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For the purposes of the pension allocation schedules, pension amounts are allocated to reporting
employers. The pension amounts of participating employers whose payrolls are reported and
contributions are remitted by another entity are included in the reporting employer’'s amounts and
will be allocated to the participating employer by the reporting employer.

Actuarial h and ions

Actuarial assumptions for both cost-sharing defined benefit plans are reviewed annually by the
Florida Retirement System Actuarial Assumptions Conference. The FRS Pension Plan has a
valuation performed annually. The HIS Program has a valuation performed biennially that is
updated for GASB reporting in the year a valuation is not performed. The most recent experience
study for the FRS Pension Plan was completed in 2014 for the pericd July 1, 2008 through June 30,
2013. Because the HIS Program is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, no experience study has been
completed for that program. The actuarial assumptions that determined the total pension liability
for the HIS Program were based on certain results of the most recent experience study for the FRS
Pension Plan. . . .

The total pension liability for each cost-sharing defined benefit plan was determined using the
individual entry age actuarial cost method. Inflation increases for both Plans is assumed at 2.60%.
Payroll growth, including inflation, for both Plans is assumed at 3.25%. Both the discount rate and
the long-term expected rate of return used for FRS Pension Plan investments is 7.0%. The Plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the total
pension liability is equal to the long-term expected rate of return.

Because the HIS Program uses a pay-as-you-go funding structure, a municipal bond rate of 3.87%
was used to determine the total pension liability for the program (Bond Buyer General Obligation
20-Bond Municipal Bond Index). Mortality assumptions for both Plans were based on the
Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB tables (refer to the valuation reports for more
information - See Additional Financial and Actuarial Information).

The following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred in 2018:

e FRS: The long-term expected rate of inflation remained at 2.60%, the real payroll growth
assumption remained at 0.65%, and the overall payroll growth rate assumption remained
at 3.25%. The long-term expected rate of return decreased from 7.10% in 2017 to 7.00%
for 2018.

¢ HIS: The municipal bonds rate used to determine total pension liability was increased from
3.58% to 3.87%.
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CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA

PROPRIETARY FUND

SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION BY FUNCTION

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash
Accounts receivable
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Due from other governmental units
Due frem other funds
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Restricted assets
Cash
Cash customer deposits
Total restricted assets
Noncurrent assets
Fixed assets
Land
improvements other than buildings
Construction In progress
Equipment
Allowance for depreclation *
Total fixed assets
Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
LIABILITIES
Current [labilities payable from current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabllities
Due from other funds
Total current lfabfiities payable from current assets

Current Habilities payable from restricted assets
Accrued Interest payable
Deposits
Current portion serlal bonds
Total current liabilitles payable from restricted assets
Other liabliitles
Accrued leave payable
Noncurrent liabilities
Long-term liabflities
Serial bonds payable
Net pension llabliity
Tota! long-term liabilities
Total liabilitles
DEFERRED INFLOWS
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets net of related debt
Restricted - debt service
Restricted - other purposes
Unrestricted
Total net position

September 30, 2018

Solid Waste
Water Fund Sewer Fund Disposal Fund Total

$ 138,636 $ 344683 $ 85,766 $ 569,083
30,275 76,272 18,729 124,276
(15,506) (38,550) (9,592) (63,648)
15,108 69,713 - 84,821
10,142 25,217 - 35,359
5,687 6,366 - 12,053
184,342 482,701 94,902 761,944

- 106,791 - 106,791

33,770 83,960 20,891 138,621
33,770 190,751 20,891 245,412

- 541,813 - 541,813
1,512,595 4,190,917 - 5,703,512
- 175,190 - 175,190

32,058 211,742 - 243,800
(1,475,607) '(4,113,817) - (5,589,424)
69,046 1,005,846 - 1,074,891
287,158 1,679,297 115,793 2,082,247
48,112 76,540 - 124,652
2,169 5394 - 7,663
3,032 3,393 - 6,425
10,232 25,439 6,330 42,000
15,433 34,226 6,330 55,988
1,546 1,730 - 3,276
29,039 72,198 17,964 119,202

- 64,000 - 64,000

30,585 137,928 17,964 186,478
2,448 2,740 - 5,188

- 807,000 - 807,000

116,761 186,764 - 302,515
116,761 992,754 - 1,109,515
165,227 1,167,648 24,294 1,357,169
15,600 24,817 - 40,417
69,046 134,845 - 203,891

- 106,791 - 106,791

33,770 83,960 20,891 138,621
51,539 237,942 70,528 360,010

$ 154,365 $ 563,638 % 91,419 $ 809,313
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CITY OF LAKE BUTLER, FLORIDA

PROPRIETARY FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION BY FUNCTION
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2018

Solid Waste
OPERATING REVENUES Water Fund Sewer Fund Disposal Fund Total
Charges for services
Water utllity services $ 282970 $ - $ - $ 282,970
Sewer utllity services - 714,564 - 714,564
Garbage solid waste services - - 183,212 183,212
Water tap in and connection 12,387 . - 12,387
Sewer tap in and connectlon - 10,373 - 10,373
Miscellaneous 194 6,123 - 6,317
Total operating revenues 295,651 731,060 183,212 1,209,823
OPERATING EXPENSES
Water services
Personnel services 163,976 - - 163,976
Operating expenses 174,953 - - 174,953
Total water services 338,928 - - 338,928
Sewer services
Personnel services - 189,865 - 189,865
Operating expenses - 352,195 - 352,195
Total sewer services - 542,060 - 542,060
Garbage and solid waste services
Operating expenses - - 148,075 148,075
Total operating expenses 338,928 542,060 148,075 1,029,063
Operating income (43,377) 189,000 35,137 180,760
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest revenue 610 - - 610
Interest expense - {42,153) - (42,153)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 610 (42,153) - {41,543)
Net income before operating transfers (42,767) 146,847 35,137 139,217
OPERATING TRANSFERS
Interfund transfer in from CDBG - 5,266 - 5,266
Interfund transfers out
Water (16,000) - - (16,000)
Sewer - (60,000) - (60,000)
(16,000) (64,734) - {70,734)
Net Income (58,767) 92,113 35,137 68,483
Net position, beginning of year 213,122 471,425 56,282 740,830

Net pasition, end of year $ 154355 § 563,538 $ 91419 $ 809,313




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Mayor and Members
of the City Commission
City of Lake Butler, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Lake Butler, Florida, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2018, and the related
" notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Lake Butler, Florida’s
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 11, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financlal Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the-City of Lake
Butler, Florida's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City of Lake Butler, Florida’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of City of Lake Butler, Florida’s internal control.

A deficlency In Internal controi exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficlency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficlency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we conslder to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Lake Butler, Florida's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
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noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

ﬁ:w.u-ﬂ- 49”““’"

POWELL & JONES
Certified Public Accountants
Februgry 11, 2019
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MANAGEMENT LETTER

To the Mayor and
Members of the City Commission
City of Lake Butler, Florida

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City of Lake Butler, Florida,
for the year ended September 30, 2018, we considered the City's internal control structure to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control structure.

However, during our audit we became aware of matters that are opportunities for strengthening
internal controls and operating efficiencies. In addition to furnishing information required by
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Audltor General, and other compliance matters, the remaining
sections of this report letter discuss these findings.

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
There were no reportable findings in the prior year.
CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS

There were no reportable findings in the current year.

AUDITOR GENERAL AND OTHER COMPLIANCE MATTERS

Annual Local Government Financial Report - The Financial Report filed with the Department of
Financial Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florlda Statutes, is in agreement with the

accompanying financial statements of the City of Lake Butler, for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2018, '

Financial Condition Assessment - As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Sections
10.554(7)(c) and 10.556(7)), we applied financial condition assessment procedures. It is
management's responsibility to monitor the entity’s financial condition, and our financial condition
assessment was based in part on representations made by management and the review of
financial information they provided.

Financial Emergency Status - We determined that the City had not met any of the conditions
described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statues that might result in a financial emergency.

Our audit did not disclose any further items that would be required to be reported under the Rules
of the Audltor General, Chapter 10.550.

Rural Economic and Community Development Requirements - We are providing the following

additional information relative to our examination of the financial statements of the City of Lake
Butler, Florida, for the year ended September 30, 2018, as provided in the audit requirements for
USDA-Rural Development borrowers.
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1. Generally accepted auditing procedures were performed in this audit.

2. Internal control was evaluated and is discussed in the prior sections of this audit report.

3. Accounting records and physical control over assets were adequate.

4. The accounting records of the City have been adjusted to agree with the audited financial
statements.

5. The City's funds are in institutions insured by the Federal government and are authorized
depositories of Florida public funds.

6. A summary of the City's insurance coverage is shown in the annual report to USDA-Rural
Development.

7. - The City Is exempt from Federal Income Tax.

8. We found nothing to indicate that financial compliance with the loan agreements had not
occurred.

CONCLUSION

We have reviewed each of our specific findings with appropriate officials or employees and have
provided them with documentation as requested. We very much enjoyed the challenges and
experiences associated with this year's audit of the City. We appreciate the helpful assistance and
courtesy afforded us by all City employees and look forward to working with you in the future.

?auu.be- J?M’

POWELL & JONES
Certified Public Accountants
February 11, 2019
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’'S REPORT

To the Mayor and
Members of the City Commission
City of Lake Butler, Florida

We have examined the City of Lake Butler, Florida’s compliance with Section 218.415, Florida
Statutes, regarding the investment of public funds during the year ended September 30, 2018.
Management is responsible for the City's compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination

provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. OGur examination does- not provide a legal -

determination on the City’s compliance with specified requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements
for the year ended September 30, 2018,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City of Lake Butler, Florida and the
Auditor General, State of Florida, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

st S

POWELL & JONES
Certified Public Accountants
February 11, 2019
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To the Mayor and
Members of the City Commission
City of Lake Butler, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Lake Butler, Florida for the year ended
September 30, 2018. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about
our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit.
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related
to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by the City of Lake Butler, Florida are described Note 1 to the
financial statements. We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the
year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions
have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. There are no sensitive estimates
affecting the City's financial statements.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. There are no sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level
of management. There were no such misstatements identified during our audit.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report
that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.
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City of Lake Butler, Florida
General Fund Revenue - Ten Year History

2009-2018
Taxes

Fiscal Ad Local Option Sales Franchise  Electric Gas
Year Valorem GasTax Discretionary Fee Utility Utility Comm. Total
2018 $77,568 $42,771 $115,971 $130,726  $36,521 $3,316 $59,038 $465,911
2017 $66,726 540,815 $110,280 $132,953 $34,068 $2,130 $51,275 $438,247
2016 $66,484  $35,158 $102,078 $129,132 $33,915 $2,430 $58,345 $427,542
2015 $69,205 $341,551 $102,361 $132,568 $34,943 $2,911 $89,577 $773,116
2014 $64,852  $32,732 $91,419 $132,883 $34,851 $3,805 $90,082 $450,624
2013 $63,504 $32,600 $86,316 $121,511 $31,424 $4,027 $86,641 $426,023
2012 Audit format was changed in this year $416,553
2011 Audit format was changed in this year $449,475
2010 $69,609  $39,927 $87,229 $147,801 $34,003 $4,318 $110,199 $493,086
2009 $68,153  $37,306 $82,795 $146,726  $27,867 $3,813 $118,791 $485,451

Ten Year

Average $68,263  $75,358 $97,306 $134,288 $33,449 $3,344 $82,994 $482,603

Licenses and Permits Fines

Fiscal
Year Occupation Other Total Fines Total
2018 $11,306 $3,820 $15,126 $10,999 $10,999
2017 $5,049 $800 $5,849 $2,944 $2,944
2016 $10,011  $1,475 $11,486 $0 $0
2015 $7,045 $6,720 $13,765 S0 S0
2014 $13,465 $3,031 $16,496 SO S0
2013 $8,232 $6,500 $14,732 S0 S0
2012  Audit format changec $10,371 $0 $o
2011 Audit format changec $13,423 S0 S0
2010 $10,420 $3,050 $13,470 S0 S0
2009 $10,653 $5,134 $15,787 S0 S0

Ten Year

Average $9,523 $3,816 $13,051 $1,394 $1,394
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City of Lake Butler, Florida
General Fund Revenue - Ten Year History

2009-2018
Intergovernmental
Fiscal State Rev Municipal Mobile  Alcohol Local
Year PILOT Grant Sharing Gas. HomeTax  Tax Sales Total
2018 S0 $7,874 $68,541 $21,420 $832 $352 $50,535 $149,554
2017 $10,568 $110,193 $64,717 $20,217 $1,199 $352 $50,678 $257,924
2016 $8,499 $30,144 $60,720 $18,896 $1,008 $1,269 $47,716 $168,252
2015 $5,172  $32,290 $58,742 $20,510 $1,017 $492 $46,351 $164,574
T 2014 $2,168 1] $57,916 $21,010 $887 $482 $38,986 $121,449
2013 $3,411 S0 $59,309 $19,821 $1,076 $471 $37,510 $121,598
2012 Audit format changed in this year $119,868
2011 Audit format changed in this year $13,423
2010 $4,265 $5,095 $55,980 $22,894 §772 $450 541,122 $130,578
2009 $6,508 $37,954 $56,358 $22,616 $1,010 $783 $39,634 $164,863
Ten Year
Average $5,074  $27,944 $60,285 $20,923 $975 $581 $44,067 $141,208
Charges for Services
Fiscal Fire Street
Year Protection  Maint. Other Total
2018 S0 $78,136 $1,300 $79,436
2017 $0 $77,093 $3,900 $80,993
2016 S0 $74,799 S0 $74,799
2015 $0 $70,390 ] $70,390
2014 $0  $68,356 S0 $68,356
2013 S0 $64,352 ] $64,352
2012  Audit format changed in this year $98,386
2011  Audit format changed in this year $75,390
2010 $4,000 544,479 $136 $48,615
2009 $4,000 $44,312 $15 548,327
Ten Year
Average $1,000 565,240 $669 $70,904.40
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City of Lake Butler, Florida
General Fund Revenue - Ten Year History

2009-2018
Miscellaneous
Fiscal Interest Comm Other Public
Year Income Center Rentals Safety Other Total
2018 $687 $18,503 $13,062 S0  $22,033 $54,285
2017 $558 $19,368 $10,841 $0 $20,476 $51,243
2016 $731 $19,141 $12,637 S0 510,338 $42,847
2015 $5,172  $32,290 $58,742 $0 $1,017 $97,221
2014 $597 $17,276 $7,550 S0  $18,448 $43,871
2013 $674 $17,062 $1,975 $90  $12,403 $32,204
2012  Audit format changed in this year $7,311
2011 Audit format changed in this year $4,700
2010 $956  $15,249 $600 $5,000 $19,671 $41,476
2009 $1,885 $12,140 $3,920 S0  $32,454 $50,399
Ten Year
Average $1,408 $18,879 $13,666 $636 $17,105 $42,556
Other Financing Sources Tax Rates (mills)
Fiscal  Enterprise City of Union Water
Year Fund Lake Butler County Schools Mgt. Library Total
2018 $78,107 2.7500 10.0000 6.6310 0.4027  0.5000 20.2837
2017 $89,000 2.7500 10.0000 6.6310 0.4027  0.5000 20.2837
2016 $98,670 2.3547 10.0000 6.8800 0.4093  0.5000 20.1440
2015 $107,287 2.3302 10.0000 7.1800 0.4104  0.5000 20.4206
2014 $152,427 2.2547 10.0000 7.3669 0.4141  0.5000 20.5357
2013 $164,683 2.2599 10.0000 7.5950 0.4143  0.5000 20.7692
2012 $135,465
2011 $138,135
2010 $72,143
2009 $553
Ten Year
Average  $103,647
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City of Lake Butler, Florida
General Fund Revenue - Ten Year History

2009-2018
Miscellaneous

Fiscal Lisc & Chg for Other
Year Taxes Permits Fines intergove  Services  Misc  Financing Total
2018 $465,911  $15,126 $10,999  $149,554 $79,436 $54,285 $78,107 $853,418
2017 $438,247 $5,849 $2,944  $257,924 $80,993 $51,243 $89,000 $926,200
2016 $427,542  $11,486 S0  $168,252 $74,799 $42,847 $98,670 $823,596
2015 $773,116  $13,765 S0  $164,574 $70,390 $97,221 $107,287 $1,226,353
2014 $450,624 $16,496 S0  $121,449 $68,356 $43,871 $152,427 $853,223
2013 $426,023 $14,732 S0 $121,598 $64,352 $32,204 $164,683 $823,592
2012 $416,553 $10,371 $0 $119,868 $98,386 $7,311 $135,465 $787,954
2011 $449,475 $13,423 S0 $13,423 $75,390 $4,700 $138,135 $694,546
2010 $493,086 $13,470 S0  $130,578 $48,615 $41,476 $72,143 $799,368
2009 $485,451  $15,787 S0  $164,863 $48,327 $50,399 $553 $765,380

Ten Year

Average  $436,012 $11,538 $294  $126,253 $62,961 $37,127 $95,836 $770,021
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City of Lake Butler, Florida
General Fund Expenditures - Ten Year History

2009-2018
General Government
Fiscal
Year Legislative City Manager Finance Legal Other Total
2018 $75,194 $145,844 $115,917 $16,075 $16,042  $369,072
2017 $79,549 $108,310 $110,201 $13,650 68,815  $320,525
2016 $81,769 $109,996 $100,411 $13,950 $23,529  $329,655
2015 $114,051 $112,281 $119,525 $29,881 $23,967  $399,705
2014 $69,984 $126,780 $127,358 $18,403 $28,874  $371,399
2013 $75,576 $107,161 $136,036 $26,507 $24,453  $369,733
2012 Audit format was changed in this year $366,999
2011 Audit format was changed in this year $381,183
2010 $61,654 $62,424 $102,119 $18,125 $9,262  $253,584
2009 $61,252 $57,299 $103,467 $13,068 $16,699  $251,785
Ten Year
Average $77,379 $103,762 $114,379 $18,707 $18,955  $426,705
Public Safety
Fiscal Law
Year Enforcement Fire other Total
2018 $90,420 $10,524 $17,878 $118,822
2017 $90,705 $9,841 $19,506 $120,052
2016 $68,917 $21,064 $19,406 $109,387
2015 $55,000 $32,799 $18,718 $106,517
2014 $50,000 $52,059 $18,691 $120,750
2013 $55,000 $39,870 $18,179 $113,049
2012 Audit format was changed in this year $112,836
2011 Audit format was changed in this year $113,494
2010 $50,000 $50,794 $12,330 $113,124
2009 $50,000 $36,055 $20,326 $106,381
Ten Year
Average $63,755 $31,626 $18,129 $141,802
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City of Lake Butler, Florida

General Fund Expenditures - Ten Year History

2009-2018
Other

Fiscal Animal
Year Transp. Control Recreation Total
2018 $241,301 $8,502 $162,969 $412,772
2017 $195,555 $10,622 $224,076 $430,253
2016 $181,031 $10,899 $167,458 $359,388
2015 $171,870 $6,810 $142,334 $321,014
2014 $187,334 $10,046 $134,698 $332,078
2013 $175,420 $21,052 $128,727 $325,199
2012 $192,380 $17,704 $111,670 $321,754
2011 $175,256 $8,950 $107,315 $291,521
2010 $262,166 $19,250 $126,880 $408,296
2009 $231,448 $12,141 $121,921 $365,510

Ten Year

Average $201,376 $12,598 $142,805 $356,779

Total Expenditures by Major Category

Fiscal General Public
Year Government Safety Other Total
2018 $369,072 $118,822 $412,772 $900,666
2017 $320,525 $120,052 $430,253 $870,830
2016 $329,655 $109,387 $359,388 $798,430
2015 $399,705 $106,517 $321,014 $827,236
2014 $371,399 $120,750 $332,078 $824,227
2013 $369,733 $113,049 $325,199 $807,981
2012 $366,999 $112,836 $321,754 $801,589
2011 $381,183 $113,494 $291,521 $786,198
2010 $253,584 $113,124 $408,296 $775,004
2009 $251,785 $106,381 $365,510 $723,676

Ten Year

Average $341,364 $113,441 $356,779 $811,584
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City of Lake Butler, Florida

Position

City Commission

City Manager

Director of Finance
Procurement

Cashier

Fiscal Assistant

Director of Public Works
Assistant Dir of Public Works
Waste Water Treatment Op
General Maintenance Worker
Parks and Recreation

Streets and Roads

Total

Employees per capita
employee per resident

City Commission are part-time

Ten Year Position Summary

Annual Budget

2010-2019

Fiscal Year ending June 30,

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 1
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
177 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 19
106 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 94.7
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